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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K
[X] ANNUAL REPORT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2017
[ ] TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the transition period from ___________ to ___________.
Commission file number 000-55316

FLITWAYS TECHNOLOGY INC.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)
NEVADA
(State or Other Jurisdiction of
Incorporation of Organization)

N/A
(I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

600 Corporate Pointe, Suite 550
Culver City, California 90230
(Address of principal executive offices)
(855) 710-0915
(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code)
Securities registered under Section 12(b) of the Exchange Act: None
Securities registered under Section 12(g) of the Exchange Act: None
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act.
Yes [ ]
No [X]
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Act.
Yes [ ]
No [X]
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the
preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the
past 90 days
Yes [X]
No [ ]
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Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data File required to be
submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§ 232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the
registrant was required to submit and post such files) Yes [X]
No [ ]
Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K (§ 229.405 of this chapter) is not contained herein, and will not be
contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any
amendment to this Form 10-K. [ ]
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting company. See the
definition of “large accelerated filer and “accelerated filer” and “smaller reporting company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):
Large accelerated filer [ ]

Accelerated filer [ ]

Non-accelerated
filer [ ]

Smaller reporting
company [X]

Emerging Growth
Company [ ]

If an emerging growth company indicate by check mark if the registrant has elected not to use the extended transition period for complying with any new or
revised financial accounting standards provided pursuant to Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act [ ]
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act)
Yes [ ]
No [X]
As of April 13, 2018 the registrant’s outstanding stock consisted of 77,849,281 common shares.

2

FLITWAYS TECHNOLOGY INC.
TABLE OF CONTENTS
PART I
Item 1
Item 1A
Item 1B
Item 2
Item 3
Item 4

Description of Business
Risk Factors
Unresolved Staff Comments
Properties
Legal Proceedings
Mine Safety Disclosures

4
6
6
6
6
6

Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer
Purchases of Equity Securities
Selected Financial Data
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operation
Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
Changes In and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial
Disclosure
Controls and Procedures
Other Information

7

PART II
Item 5
Item 6
Item 7
Item 8
Item 9
Item 9A
Item 9B

8
9
14
15
16
17

PART III
Item 10
Item 11
Item 12
Item 13
Item 14

Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance
Executive Compensation
Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related
Stockholder Matters
Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence
Principal Accountant Fees and Services

18
20
20

Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules

23

22
22

PART IV
Item 15

3

PART I
Item 1. Description of Business
Forward-looking Statements
This annual report contains forward-looking statements. These statements relate to future events or our future financial performance. In some cases, you can
identify forward-looking statements by terminology such as "may", "will", "should", "expects", "plans", "anticipates", "believes", "estimates", "predicts",
"potential" or "continue" or the negative of these terms or other comparable terminology. These statements are only predictions and involve known and unknown
risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause our or our industry's actual results, levels of activity, performance or achievements to be materially different
from any future results, levels of activity, performance or achievements expressed or implied by these forward-looking statements.
Although we believe that the expectations reflected in the forward-looking statements are reasonable, we cannot guarantee future results, levels of activity,
performance or achievements. Except as required by applicable laws, including the securities laws of the United States, we do not intend to update any of the
forward-looking statements so as to conform these statements to actual results.
As used in this annual report, the terms "we", "us", "our", “the Company”, and "Flitways" mean FlitWays Technology Inc., unless otherwise indicated.
All dollar amounts refer to US dollars unless otherwise indicated.
Corporate Background
FlitWays Technology Inc. was founded in 2013, with a mission to provide both corporate enterprises and their employees and global travel resellers and their
customers with a complete offering of fully integrated ground transportation solutions for any budget or need. We have created a sophisticated software platform to
give customers enterprise suite and app-based booking, billing, expense management and real-time monitoring for a simple to use ground transportation offering.
We combined that with our proprietary global network of private car, limousine, taxi and ride sharing service providers. This allows our clients to have a solution
that mimics the simplicity of workflow for airline and hotel travel, removing the manual, complex and time consuming nature of traditional ground transportation.
Our offering not only helps our customers, but provides car service owners and drivers better utilization of their equity. We give travelers an array of classes of
cars, pick-up options and payment options, all fully integrated to corporate expense and travel management systems. Flitways’ objective is to take an antiquated
market and bring it into line with the advanced and seamless methodology of the other key components of the travel experience.
Merger Transaction
On October 14, 2016 (“Closing Date”), Flitways completed a reverse recapitalization of Cataca Resources, Inc. (“Cataca”), a Nevada corporation. At the time of
the reverse recapitalization, Cataca was considered a shell corporation with no revenues or significant assets. In connection with the merger transaction, Cataca
issued 20,000,000 shares of its common stock in exchange for 100% of the issued and outstanding shares of Flitways.
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For financial reporting purposes, Flitways has been treated as the “acquirer” in the reverse recapitalization completed on the Closing Date. Accordingly, the assets
and liabilities of Flitways are reported at their historical cost and the assets and liabilities of Cataca were recorded at their historical cost basis. The consolidated
financial statements reported herein have been retroactively restated for all periods presented to report the historical financial position, results of operations and
cash flows of Flitways. The 30,000,000 shares of common stock retained by the Cataca shareholders were reported as issued on the Closing Date.
Our Business
FlitWays is an innovative, disruptive travel technology company that offers a convenient, cost-effective ground transportation solution for corporate travelers and a
new source of revenue for travel businesses. While companies like Uber and Lyft focus on individual consumers, Flitways serves the massive enterprise market,
including industry leaders Amazon, Pokémon, Skyscanner, and others.
Flitways’ growing network of ground travel providers currently covers 220 major cities and 400 airports worldwide, and the company is projecting continued
expansion in both enterprise (corporate) and travel business segments. Catching the eye of business and travel industry media, Flitways has been featured in outlets
such as CNN, FORTUNE, Fast Company, Reuters, New York Magazine, Skift, VentureBurn, Digital Journal, Travel Pulse, and many others.
FlitWays has been helping global companies with effective ground transportation service in 220 cities worldwide. We’re proud of where we came from, and where
we're going — and we will continue to push the limits and innovate the corporate ground transportation market.
Our contact address is 600 Corporate Pointe, Suite 550, Culver City, California, 90230. Our telephone number is 1-855-710-0915. Our website is
www.flitways.com.
Unless otherwise indicated, all references in this Annual Report to “dollars” or “$” refer to US dollars.
Corporate Solutions
Flitways offers business focused ride service by curating the best experience to meet complex travel requirements. Flitways business solution offers a consistent
ground transportation experience for corporate travelers in 220 cities around the world. Businesses can use Flitways to facilitate their global corporate travels,
events and employee’s commute. Flitways enterprise suite help employees to adhere to corporate travel compliance programs and all employee travel expenses go
through one centralized reporting system (no individual receipts to process). Today, our corporate clientele includes major brands like Ctrip, Rideways, Skyscaner
and Pokemon.
Travel Resellers
Flitways empowers travel businesses to integrate a scalable ground transportation offering into their ancillary and add-on destination service. Flitways enables
travel companies and online travel agencies to solve the first/last mile problem for their customers by adding a ground transportation service alongside existing
travel services. Online travel platforms like Skyscanner and Ctrip.com enables their customers to purchase and add a Flitways ground transportation service to their
travel itinerary for a complete door-to-door experience.
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Booking rides with FlitWays
Booking rides, airport shuttles and/or executive cars with our website/application requires the customer to be a registered user. When booking with FlitWays the
customer is able to select a choice of vehicle and preferred gratuity based on their personal preference. The estimate travel fare provided is built on the most
resourceful travel route and on decent traffic situations. The ultimate fare may differ due to traffic situations, the route taken, wait time, parking, and return trip.
Once the customer's booking has been completed and confirmed, the company that owns the vehicle chosen is automatically notified that the vehicle is booked.
The notification of the booking confirmation is also sent to the customer via SMS and email confirmation message together with the details of the customer’s
journey. Customers can view their past bookings in their FlitWays account, which can be easily used for business travel expense reports.
Global Coverage
With access to over 25,000 global licensed ground transportation providers in 220 cities and 400 major airports. Flitways brings a contemporary and enlarge value
for airlines and traveler businesses to connect and create the next mileage experience for its travelers and flight crew members.
Marketing Strategy
Most of our customers have been acquired through various partnerships with travel vendors, which give us the opportunity to minimize marketing costs and to
focus on establishing new partnerships daily. In the future we intend to promote FlitWays using Business-to-Business marketing concepts to increase and expand
brand awareness and general corporate exposure.
Employees and Consultants
As of December 31, 2017, we have 6 employees and 13 independent contractors.
Item 1A. Risk Factors
Not required.
Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.
Item 2. Properties
We have maintained executive offices at 600 Corporate Pointe, Suite 550, Culver City, California 90230. The office and general expenses associated with leasing
our office space is approximately $20,000 per month. We believe that our office space is adequate for our current needs, but growth potential may require a facility
due to anticipated addition of personnel. We do not have any policies regarding investments in real estate, securities or other forms of property. We do not own any
real property.
Item 3. Legal Proceedings
We know of no material pending or active legal proceedings to which we are a party or concerning any of our properties. We are not aware of any legal
proceedings contemplated by any governmental authority against us.
Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Not applicable.
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PART II
Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities.
Market Information
There is a limited public market for our common shares. Our common shares are quoted on the OTC Pink Sheets under the symbol “FTWS”. Trading in stocks
quoted on the OTC Pink Sheets is often thin and is characterized by wide fluctuations in trading prices due to many factors that may be unrelated to a company’s
operations or business prospects. We cannot assure you that there will be a market in the future for our common stock.
OTC Pink Sheets securities are not listed or traded on the floor of an organized national or regional stock exchange. Instead, OTC Pink Sheets securities
transactions are conducted through a telephone and computer network connecting dealers in stocks. OTC Pink Sheets issuers are traditionally smaller companies
that do not meet the financial and other listing requirements of a regional or national stock exchange.
The following table sets forth the high and low closing bid prices for our common stock for the fiscal quarter indicated as reported on OTC Markets. There was no
trading prior to April 2017.The quotations reflect inter-dealer prices, without retail mark-up, mark-down or commission and may not represent actual transactions.
The last reported sales price of our common stock on the OTC Markets on April 12, 2018 was $0.0069 per share.
High
Year ended December 31, 2017
First Quarter (as of April 13, 2017)
Second Quarter
Third Quarter
Fourth Quarter

$

Low
0.095
0.14
0.077

$

0.02

0.093
0.09
0.07
0.01

Number of Holders
As of April 13, 2018, we had approximately 89 shareholders of record of our common stock.
Dividend Policy
We have not declared any cash dividends on our common stock since our inception and do not anticipate paying such dividends in the foreseeable future. We plan
to retain any future earnings for use in our business. Any decisions as to future payments of dividends will depend on our earnings and financial position and such
other facts, as the Board of Directors deems relevant.
Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities; Use of Proceeds from Registered Securities
The following unregistered securities were issued by the Company during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2017:
Shares issued for services rendered

7,820,000

Shares issued for the conversion of notes payable

4,900,000

The Company issued the shares of common stock described above in reliance upon the exemptions from registration afforded by Section 4(a)(2) and/or Rule 506
promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.
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Equity Compensation Plan Information
In December 2017, the Company granted the CEO options (“Options”) to purchase 31,000,000 shares of the Company’s common stock vesting 7,000,000 options
on December 31, 2017 and 8,000,000 options on each date of December 31, 2018, 2019 and 2020 with an exercise price of $0.0237. The Options have a
contractual live of five years, exercise price of $0.0237 and vesting terms over three years.
Purchase of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Affiliated Purchasers
We did not purchase any of our shares of common stock or other securities during our fourth quarter of our fiscal year ended December 31, 2017.
Item 6. Selected Financial Data
Not applicable.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation
Safe Harbor
This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. These statements relate to future events or our future
financial performance. In some cases, you can identify forward-looking statements by terminology including, "could" "may", "will", "should", "expect", "plan",
"anticipate", "believe", "estimate", "predict", "potential" and the negative of these terms or other comparable terminology. These statements are only predictions.
Actual events or results may differ materially.
While these forward-looking statements, and any assumptions upon which they are based, are made in good faith and reflect our current judgment regarding the
direction of our business, actual results will almost always vary, sometimes materially, from any estimates, predictions, projections, assumptions or other future
performance suggested in this Annual Report.
Results of Operations
For the Years Ended December 31,

Sales, net
Cost of sales
Gross profit
Gross profit margin
Operating expenses
Core technology and development expense
Officer compensation
General and administrative
Total operating expenses
Operating loss
Financing related costs
Net loss

$

$

2017
1,257,000
1,175,000
82,000
7%
157,000
253,000
1,278,000
1,688,000
(1,606,000)
(6,933,000)
(8,539,000)

$

$

2016
434,000
364,000
70,000
16%
59,000
79,000
2,515,000
2,653,000
(2,583,000)
(6,000)
(2,589,000)

Sales, net for the year ended December 31, 2017 increased by 189.6% to $1,257,000 as compared to $434,000 for 2016. The increase in sales, net is contributable
to an overall increase in business as the Company continues to expand its business.
Gross profit for the year ended December 31, 2017 decreased to 7% as compared to 16% for 2016. Our cost of sales is comprised of (i) fees paid to the contract
drivers, (ii) fees paid for the credit card processing services and (iii) cost of maintaining our call centers and customer service. For the year ended December 31,
2017, the fees paid to contract drivers was approximately $976,000, or 78% of revenues, as compared to $303,000, or 70% of revenues for 2016. The increase in
fees paid to drivers was approximately 8% as a percentage of revenues. As the Company has been expanding its services, we were required to increase the rate paid
to the drivers. For the year ended December 31, 2017 the fees paid for the credit card processing services was approximately $48,000, or 4% of revenues, as
compared to $24,000 or 6% of revenue for 2016. For the year ended December 31, 2017, the cost of maintaining our call centers and customer service was
approximately $152,000, or 12% of revenue, as compared to approximately $52,000, or 12% of revenue for 2016.
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Core technology and development expenses, for the year ended December 31, 2017, increased by 166% to $157,000 as compared to $59,000 for 2016. The
increase in core technology and development expenses is attributable to our continued expansion of the services we provide to our customer. As we identify new
services, we are required to update our core technology to handle the new services.
Officer salary, for the year ended December 31, 2017, increased by 220% to $253,000 as compared to $79,000 for 2016. The increase in officer salary is
attributable to a contractual annual salary increase for the year ended December 31, 2017 and an expense of approximately $133,000 for the fair value of stock
options granted and vested in 2017.
General and administrative expenses, for the year ended December 31, 2017, decreased by 49% to $1,278,000 as compared to $2,515,000 for 2016. The decrease
in our general and administrative expense is attributable to (i) an increase in employee related cost of approximately $61,000, (ii) an increase in marketing and
advertising expenses of approximately $51,000, (iii) an increase in professional fees of approximately $326,000, (iv) an increase in rent expense of approximately
$67,000, (v) a decrease in consulting expenses related to corporate structure of approximately $1,812,000, and (vi) the remaining increase of approximately
$70,000 is attributable to the additional cost we incurred for accounting, auditing, consulting and legal services related to our status of being public company filing
with U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission.
During the year ended December 31, 2017, we incurred approximately $6,933,000 of cost related to our convertible debentures used to finance the Company. Of
the total financing cost (i) approximately $976,000 was related to interest, penalties for the default of our debt and amortization of loan discount, (ii) approximately
$1,105,000 related to the fair value of derivative features bifurcated from the convertible debentures and (iii) approximately $4,852,000 of expense related to the
changes in fair value of the derivatives.
Liquidity and Capital Resources
During the year ended December 31, 2017, our primary source of liquidity was from proceeds from the issuance of convertible notes payable as compared to prior
years where our primary source of liquidity was from our sale of common stock. The following summarizes our cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2017
and December 31, 2016:

Cash used in operating activities
Cash used in investing activities
Cash provided by financing activities
Net change in cash

$

$

2017
(375,000)
(65,000)
410,000
(30,000)

$

$

2016
(270,000)
339,000
69,000

As a result of our growth stage, the Company’s net sales have not reached a level to sustain cash flows to meet our current obligations and operations expenditures,
as result the Company sold shares of the Company’s common stock and issued convertible debentures to raise capital to meet our operating expenditures.
As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, our total assets were $237,000 and $87,000, respectively, and our total liabilities were $8,123,000 and $755,000, respectively.
As of December 31, 2017 and 2106, we had working capital deficits of approximately of $7,950,000 and $668,000, respectively.
We reported net losses of $8,539,000 and $2,589,000 for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.
During the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, we raised a total of $0 and $305,000 in connection with the issuances of shares of our common stock for
gross proceeds of $0 and $305,000 and issued convertible debentures in the amount of $643,000 and $0, with net proceeds of approximately $456,000 and $0,
respectively. Also, we have relied on our sole officer for short term financing. For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, we repaid the officer
approximately $46,000 and borrowed approximately $34,000, respectively.
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Cash Requirements
Our ability to fund our growth and meet our obligations on a timely basis is dependent on our ability to match our available financial resources to our growth
strategy, which includes acquisitions for cash or a combination of cash and debt. The decisions we make with regard to acquisitions drive the level of capital
required and the level of our financial obligations.
If we are unable to generate cash flow from operations and successfully raise sufficient additional capital through future debt and equity financings or strategic and
collaborative ventures with potential partners, we would likely have to reduce the size and scope of our operations.
We have suffered recurring losses from operations. The continuation of our Company is dependent upon our Company attaining and maintaining profitable
operations and raising additional capital as needed. In this regard, we have raised additional capital through equity offerings and loan transactions, and, in the short
term, will seek to raise additional capital in such manners to fund our operations. Our officer and significant shareholder have not made any written or oral
agreement to provide us additional financing. There can be no assurance that we will be able to continue to raise capital on terms and conditions that are acceptable
to us.
Inflation
In the opinion of management, inflation has not and will not have a material effect on our operations in the immediate future. Management will continue to monitor
inflation and evaluate the possible future effects of inflation on our business and operations.
Contractual Payment Obligations
Operating Lease
In September 2017, effective October 1, 2017, the Company entered into an agreement to lease office space for its corporate headquarters in Culver City
California. The lease is for a term of five years and five months.
Future minimum lease payments under the non-cancelable operating lease for the years ending December 31, are as follows:

2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
thereafter
Total minimum future lease payments

Amount
242,000
250,000
259,000
271,000
285,000
48,000
$ 1,355,000
$

Employment Agreement
In December 2017, the Company entered into an employment agreement (“Employment Agreement”) with the Company’s Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) with
a term from January 1, 2018 and expiring on December 31, 2020 (“Term”). Effective as of the expiration date and as of each annual anniversary date thereof, the
Term shall be extended for an additional one-year period unless, (i) not later than 6 months prior to such an automatic extension date, the Company shall have
given written notice to the CEO that the Term shall not be so extended or (ii) not later than six months prior to such an automatic extension date, the CEO shall
have given written notice to the Company that the Term shall not be so extended. If the Company cancels the Agreement, the CEO is entitled to severance pay
equal to one year of the CEO’s base annual salary at the rate applicable on the date of cancellation.
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The Agreement provides the CEO with an annual salary of $150,000 for the year ending December 31, 2018, $250,000 for each of the years ending December 31,
2019 and 2020. Also, the CEO was granted an option to purchase 31,000,000 shares of the Company’s common stock vesting 7,000,000 options on December 31,
2017 and 8,000,000 options on each date of December 31, 2018, 2019 and 2020 with an exercise price of $0.0237.
Also, the Agreement provides for an inventive bonus for each of the years ending December 31, 2018, 2019 and 2020. The milestone are as follows:

Milestones to be achieved by the Company
Annual revenue growth
Stock price increase from fourth quarter Variable
Weighted Average Stock Price (“VWAP”) to the
following years 4Q VWAP
Number of new Enterprise accounts with avg.
monthly revenue greater than $2,000
Timely filing of all required disclosures
Equity capital raised
Global driver supply
Total

Percentage of bonus
based on annual
salary
40%

20%
20%
5%
10%
5%
100%

Pass
(25%)
100%

Met (50%)
200%

Exceeded
(100%)
300%

200%
30

400%
65

600%
100

All
$1mm
+ 20%

All
$2.5mm
+ 40%

All
$4mm
+60%

Convertible debentures
As of December 31, 2017, the Company has the following convertible notes payable:
·
·
·

Approximately $394,000 of principal and $429,000 of penalties that are in default under the convertible debenture agreements.
Approximately $88,000 of principal due on September 2018 under a convertible debenture agreement.
Approximately $115,000 of principal due in February 2018 under a convertible debenture agreement

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements
Under SEC regulations, we are required to disclose our off-balance sheet arrangements that have or are reasonably likely to have a current or future effect on our
financial condition, such as changes in financial condition, revenue or expenses, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or capital resources that are
material to investors. As of December 31, 2017, we have no off-balance sheet arrangements.
Going Concern
The Company’s independent registered public auditors’ reports accompanying our December 31, 2017 and 2016 audited financial statements contains an
explanatory paragraph expressing substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern. The Company has experienced recurring losses since its
inception. The Company incurred a net loss of approximately $8,539,000 for the year ended December 31, 2017, and had an accumulated deficit of approximately
$11,382,000 as of December 31, 2017. Since inception, the Company has financed its activities principally through loans from its majority shareholder, other
lenders and equity financing. As of December 31, 2017, approximately $824,000 of the Company’s convertible promissory notes were in default. Management
expects to incur additional losses and cash outflows in the foreseeable future in connection with development of its operating activities. These conditions raise
substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. The financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will
continue as a going concern. Our ability to continue as a going concern is dependent on raising additional capital to fund our operations and ultimately on
generating future profitable operations. There can be no assurance that we will be able to raise sufficient additional capital or eventually have positive cash flow
from operations to address all of our cash flow needs. If we are not able to find alternative sources of cash or generate positive cash flow from operations, our
business and shareholders will be materially and adversely affected.
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The Company is subject to a number of risks similar to those of other similar stage companies, including dependence on key individuals, successful
development, marketing and branding of products; uncertainty of technology development and generation of revenues; dependence on outside sources of financing;
risks associated with research, development; dependence on third-party contractors for ride services; protection of intellectual property; and competition with
larger, better-capitalized companies. Ultimately, the attainment of profitable operations is dependent on future events, including obtaining adequate financing to
fulfil its development activities and generating a level of revenues adequate to support the Company’s cost structure. To support the Company’s financial
performance, the Company’s majority shareholder has executed a line of credit to provide funding to the Company of not more than $200,000. Additionally, the
Company’s management plans on raising additional funds through the sale of the Company’s securities through the issuance stock or notes payable. There can be
no assurance however that such financing will be available in sufficient amounts, when and if needed, on acceptable terms or at all. If results of operations for 2018
do not meet management’s expectations, or additional capital is not available, management believes it has the ability to reduce certain expenditures. The precise
amount and timing of the funding needs cannot be determined accurately at this time, and will depend on a number of factors, including the market demand for the
Company’s services, the quality of technology development efforts, management of working capital, and continuation of normal payment terms and conditions for
purchase of services. The Company is uncertain whether its cash balances and cash flow from operations will be sufficient to fund its operations for the next twelve
months. If the Company is unable to substantially increase revenues, reduce expenditures, generate cash flows for operations, or raise additional funding, to
continue as a going concern, as defined above, through its major shareholder, or through other avenues, then the Company may have to curtail operations.
Critical Accounting Policies
The discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations is based upon our consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Certain accounting policies and estimates are particularly important to
the understanding of our financial position and results of operations and require the application of significant judgment by our management or can be materially
affected by changes from period to period in economic factors or conditions that are outside of our control. As a result, they are subject to an inherent degree of
uncertainty. In applying these policies, management uses their judgment to determine the appropriate assumptions to be used in the determination of certain
estimates. Those estimates are based on our historical operations, our future business plans and projected financial results, the terms of existing contracts,
observance of trends in the industry, information provided by our customers and information available from other outside sources, as appropriate. For information
regarding the Company’s critical accounting policies as well as recent accounting pronouncements, see Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.
Concentration of Credit Risk
Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentration of credit risk consist of cash and accounts receivable. Under Section 343 of the DoddFrank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act, for the two-year period of January 1, 2016 through December 31, 2017, cash balances in noninterestbearing transaction accounts at all FDIC-insured depository institutions are provided temporary unlimited deposit insurance coverage. As of December 31, 2017,
cash balances in interest-bearing accounts were approximately $0.
Trends, Events, and Uncertainties
Development of new technologies or product solutions is, by its nature, unpredictable. Although we will undertake development efforts with commercially
reasonable diligence, there can be no assurance that we will have adequate capital to develop our technology or products to the extent needed to create future sales
to sustain our operations.
No assurance can be provided that our technology or products will be adopted, that we will ever earn revenue sufficient to support our operations, or that we will
ever be profitable. Furthermore, since we have no committed source of financing, we can provide no assurance that we will be able to raise money as and when we
need it to continue our operations. If we cannot raise funds as and when we need them, we may be required to severely curtail, or even to cease, our operations.
Other than as discussed above and elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, we are not aware of any trends, events, or uncertainties that are likely to have a
material effect on our financial condition.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
of Flitways Technology Inc.
Opinion on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Flitways Technology Inc. and (the Company) as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, and the
related statements of operations, stockholders’ deficit, and cash flows for each of the years in the two-year period ended December 31, 2017, and the related
notes to the consolidated financial statements (collectively referred to as the consolidated financial statements). In our opinion, the consolidated financial
statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, and the results of its operations
and its cash flows for each of the years in the two-year period ended December 31, 2017, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.
Explanatory Paragraph – Going Concern
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going concern. As discussed in Note 1
to the consolidated financial statements, the Company has continued to incur significant operating losses and negative cash flows from operations, during the
year ended December 31, 2017 and has negative working capital at December 31, 2017. These conditions raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern. Management’s plans in regard to these matters are also described in Note 1. The consolidated financial statements do not
include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.
Basis for Opinion
These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States) (PCAOB) and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the
applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. The Company is not required to
have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. As part of our audits, we are required to obtain an
understanding of internal control over financial reporting, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to error or fraud,
and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
Rose, Snyder & Jacobs LLP
We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2017.
Encino, California
April 13, 2018
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FLITWAYS TECHNOLOGY INC.
Consolidated Balance Sheets
As of December 31,

2017

2016

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net
Other current assets
Total current assets

$

Property and equipment, net
Other assets

46,000
107,000
20,000
173,000

$

17,000
47,000

Total Assets
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Deferred compensation - Officer
Line of credit - related party
Convertible promissory notes, net of discounts
Derivative liabilities
Total current liabilities

237,000

$

87,000

$

841,000
203,000
40,000
911,000
6,128,000
8,123,000

$

495,000
174,000
86,000
755,000

Stockholders' Deficit
Common stock 500,000,000 authorized, $0.001 par value;
65,149,281 and 52,429,281 shares issued and outstanding
Additional paid in capital
Accumulated deficit
Total Stockholders' Deficit
$

-

-

65,000
3,431,000
(11,382,000)

52,000
2,123,000
(2,843,000)

(7,886,000)

(668,000)

237,000

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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-

$

Commitments and Contingencies – Note 7

Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Deficit

76,000
11,000
87,000

$

87,000

FLITWAYS TECHNOLOGY INC.
Consolidated Statements of Operations
For the Years Ended December 31,

Revenues, net
Cost of revenues
Gross profit

$

2017
1,257,000
1,175,000
82,000

$

2016
434,000
364,000
70,000

Operating expenses
Core technology and development expense
Officer compensation
General and administrative expenses
Total operating expenses
Operating loss

157,000
253,000
1,278,000
1,688,000
(1,606,000)

59,000
79,000
2,515,000
2,653,000
(2,583,000)

Other Income (Expenses)
Interest expense
Financing expenses
Change in fair value of derivative liabilities

(976,000)
(1,105,000)
(4,852,000)

(6,000)
-

Net loss before income taxes

(8,539,000)

(2,589,000)

-

-

Provision for income taxes
Net loss

$

(8,539,000)

$

(2,589,000)

Basic and Diluted Loss per Share - Common Stock

$

(0.14)

$

(0.10)

Weighted Average Number of Shares Outstanding:
Basic and Diluted Common Stock

59,384,528

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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26,756,107

FLITWAYS TECHNOLOGY INC.
Consolidated Statement of Stockholders’ Deficit
For the Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

Additional
Paid-In
Capital

Common Stock
Shares
Balance January 1, 2016
Issuance of shares for
merger transaction
Issuance of shares for cash
Issuance of shares for
services rendered
Net loss
Balance December 31,
2016
Beneficial conversion
feature
Issuance of shares for
services rendered
Issuance of shares for
conversion of notes
payable
Fair value of stock options
vested
Net loss
Balance December 31,
2017

Amount
$

5,000

Total
Stockholders'
Deficit

Accumulated
Deficit

20,000,000

$ 20,000

$

(254,000)

30,000,000
1,179,281

30,000
1,000

(30,000)
304,000

-

305,000

1,250,000
-

1,000
-

1,844,000
-

(2,589,000)

1,845,000
(2,589,000)

52,429,281

52,000

2,123,000

(2,843,000)

(668,000)

-

-

150,000

-

150,000

7,820,000

8,000

879,000

-

887,000

4,900,000

5,000

146,000

-

151,000

-

-

133,000
-

(8,539,000)

133,000
(8,539,000)

65,149,281

$ 65,000

$ 3,431,000

$ (11,382,000)

$ (7,886,000)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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$

(229,000)

FLITWAYS TECHNOLOGY INC.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For the Years Ended December 31

2017
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating
activities:
Depreciation expense
Amortization of debt discounts
Derivative liability expense at inception
Change in fair value of derivatives
Fair value of shares issued for services
Debt commitment fee
Fair value of stock options issued
Debt default penalty expense
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable
Other current assets
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Deferred compensation - officer
Net cash used in operating activities

$

2016

(8,539,000)

$

(2,589,000)

1,000
278,000
1,105,000
4,852,000
887,000
115,000
133,000
429,000

2,000
1,845,000
-

(96,000)
(20,000)
451,000
29,000
(375,000)

(4,000)
446,000
30,000
(270,000)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchase of property and equipment
Other assets
Net cash used in investing activities

(18,000)
(47,000)
(65,000)

-

Cash Flows from Financing
Proceeds from issuance of notes payable
Advances (repayments) line of credit - related party
Proceeds from the sale of common stock
Net cash provided by financing activities

456,000
(46,000)
410,000

34,000
305,000
339,000

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash

(30,000)

69,000

76,000

7,000

Cash – Beginning of Year
Cash – End of Year

$

Supplemental Cash Flow Information
Cash paid of income taxes
Cash paid for interest
Noncash investing and financing activities:
Convertible promissory notes and accrued interest converted to
common stock

46,000

$

$
$

-

$
$

-

$

151,000

$

-

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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76,000

FLITWAYS TECHNOLOGY INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016
Note 1 - Nature of the Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Company
Flitways Technology Inc. (Flitways”), formerly known as Cataca Resources, Inc. (the “Company”), was incorporated in the State of Nevada as a for-profit
company on December 11, 2012 and established a fiscal year end of December 31. The Company was initially engaged in the acquisition, exploration and
development of natural resource properties. On September 7, 2016, the Company abandoned its mineral claim and entered into a Share Exchange Agreement (the
“Share Exchange Agreement”) with Flitways Technology Inc. The Company refocused its efforts and is now involved in the “on demand” transportation business
providing businesses and private traveler’s access to book and schedule ground transportation online or by mobile device. The Company gives travelers access to
customizable travel rides through a network of ground travel providers. It incorporates ride booking into the travel industry by making travel ride booking available
at various travel points of sale to allow travelers to book rides that fit their lifestyle online and on its mobile application. Effective November 9, 2016, the Company
changed its name from Cataca Resources, Inc. to Flitways Technology Inc.
Merger Transaction
On October 14, 2016 (“Closing Date”), Flitways completed a reverse recapitalization of Cataca Resources, Inc. (“Cataca”), a Nevada corporation. At the time of
the reverse recapitalization, Cataca was considered a shell corporation with no revenues or significant assets. In connection with the merger transaction, Cataca
issued 20,000,000 shares of its common stock in exchange for 100%, or 10,000,000 shares, of the issued and outstanding shares of Flitways. This share exchange
resulted in the shareholders of Flitways obtaining a majority voting interest in Cataca.
For financial reporting purposes, Flitways has been treated as the “acquirer” in the reverse recapitalization completed on the Closing Date. Accordingly, the assets
and liabilities of Flitways are reported at their historical cost and the assets and liabilities of Cataca were recorded at their historical cost basis. The consolidated
financial statements reported herein have been retroactively restated for all periods presented to report the historical financial position, results of operations and
cash flows of Flitways. The 30,000,000 shares of common stock retained by the Cataca shareholders were reported as issued on the Closing Date.
Basis of Presentation and Going Concern
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going concern. The Company has
experienced recurring losses since its inception. The Company incurred a net loss of approximately $8,539,000 for the year ended December 31, 2017, and had an
accumulated deficit of approximately $11,382,000 as of December 31, 2017. Since inception, the Company has financed its activities principally through loans
from its majority shareholder, other lenders and equity financing. As of December 31, 2017, approximately $824,000 of the Company’s convertible promissory
notes were in default. Management expects to incur additional losses and cash outflows in the foreseeable future in connection with development of its operating
activities.
These conditions raise substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. The accompanying consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, which contemplate continuation of the Company as a
going concern. The consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification of recorded asset amounts or
the amounts and classification of liabilities that could result from the outcome of this uncertainty. The consolidated financial statements do not include any
adjustments that might be necessary should the Company be unable to continue as a going concern.
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The Company is subject to a number of risks similar to those of other similar stage companies, including dependence on key individuals, successful development,
marketing and branding of products; uncertainty of technology development and generation of revenues; dependence on outside sources of financing; risks
associated with research, development; dependence on third-party contractors for ride services; protection of intellectual property; and competition with larger,
better-capitalized companies. Ultimately, the attainment of profitable operations is dependent on future events, including obtaining adequate financing to fulfil its
development activities and generating a level of revenues adequate to support the Company’s cost structure. To support the Company’s financial performance, the
Company’s majority shareholder has executed a line of credit to provide funding to the Company of not more than $200,000. Additionally, the Company’s
management plans on raising additional funds through the sale of the Company’s securities through the issuance stock or notes payable.
There can be no assurance however that such financing will be available in sufficient amounts, when and if needed, on acceptable terms or at all. If results of
operations for 2018 do not meet management’s expectations, or additional capital is not available, management believes it has the ability to reduce certain
expenditures. The precise amount and timing of the funding needs cannot be determined accurately at this time, and will depend on a number of factors, including
the market demand for the Company’s services, the quality of technology development efforts, management of working capital, and continuation of normal
payment terms and conditions for purchase of services. The Company is uncertain whether its cash balances and cash flow from operations will be sufficient to
fund its operations for the next twelve months. If the Company is unable to substantially increase revenues, reduce expenditures, generate cash flows for
operations, or raise additional funding, to continue as a going concern, as defined above, through its major shareholder, or through other avenues, then the
Company may have to curtail operations.
Financial Statement Presentation
The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect reported amounts and related disclosures.
Use of Estimates
The preparation of the accompanying financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Company considers all unrestricted cash, short-term deposits, and other investments with original maturities of no more than ninety days when acquired to be
cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of the statement of cash flows. As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company did not have any cash equivalents.
Concentration of Credit Risk
Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentration of credit risk consist primarily of cash and accounts receivable. The Company
maintains cash balances at financial institutions within the United States, which are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to limits of
approximately $250,000. The Company has not experienced any losses with regard to its bank accounts and believes it is not exposed to any risk of loss on its cash
bank accounts.
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Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable are comprised of credit card receivables and receivables from the Company’s travel partners and are stated at cost less an allowance for
estimated uncollectible accounts. The allowance is calculated based upon the level of past due accounts and the relationship with and financial status of the
Company’s customers. Account balances are written off against the allowance when it is determined that it is probable that the receivable will not be recovered. As
of December 31, 2017 and 2016, no allowance for bad debt was considered necessary.
Property and Equipment
Property and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization, and includes expenditures that substantially increase the useful lives of
existing property and equipment. Maintenance, repairs, and minor renovations are expensed as incurred. Upon sale or retirement of property and equipment, the
cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the respective accounts and the resulting gain or loss is included in the results of operations. The
Company provides for depreciation of property and equipment using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives or the term of the lease, as appropriate.
All property and equipment are depreciated over a period of three years.
Commitments and Contingencies
In the normal course of business, the Company is subject to loss contingencies, such as legal proceedings and claims arising out of its business, that cover a wide
range of matters, including, among others, government investigations, environment liability and tax matters. An accrual for a loss contingency is recognized when
it is probable that an asset had been impaired or a liability had been incurred and the amount of loss can be reasonably estimated.
Fair Value Measurements
The accounting standards regarding fair value of financial instruments and related fair value measurements define fair value, establish a three-level valuation
hierarchy for disclosures of fair value measurement and enhance disclosure requirements for fair value measures.
ASC Topic 820 establishes a valuation hierarchy for disclosure of the inputs to valuation used to measure fair value. This hierarchy prioritizes the inputs into three
broad levels as follows:
Level 1 - inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2 - inputs are quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets or inputs that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly
through market corroboration, for substantially the full term of the financial instrument.
Level 3 - inputs are unobservable inputs based on our own assumptions used to measure assets and liabilities at fair value.
On a Recurring Basis
A financial asset or liability’s classification within the hierarchy is determined based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement.
The Company’s assessment of the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires management to make judgments and
consider factors specific to the asset or liability.
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Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value, measured on a recurring basis as follows:
Description
Derivative liability
Total

$
$

Level 1
-

$
$

Level 2
-

Level 3
$ 6,128,000
$ 6,128,000

Gains (Losses)
($4,852,000)
($4,852,000)

Our Level 3 fair value liabilities represent the fair value of warrants and beneficial conversion feature recorded related to the convertible notes issued during the
year ended December 31, 2017. The change in the balance of the derivative liability during the year ended December 31, 2017 was calculated using the BlackScholes Model, which is classified as a loss on change in derivative liability in the consolidated statement of operations. The Black-Scholes Model does take into
consideration the Company’s stock price, historical volatility, and risk-free interest rate.
The following table provides a summary of the changes in fair value of the Company’s derivative liabilities which are Level 3 liabilities for the year ended
December 31, 2017:
Balance at January 1, 2017
Fair value of warrants and conversion features issued
Conversion into common stock
Change in value of warrants and conversion features

$

1,380,000
(104,000)
4,852,000

Balance at December 31, 2017

$

6,128,000

Due to their short-term nature, the carrying values of cash and equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable, and accrued expenses, approximate fair value.
Based on borrowing rates currently available to the Company for loans with similar terms, the carrying value of the notes payable approximates fair value.
Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation
Share-based compensation cost is measured at grant date, based on the fair value of the award, and is recognized as expense over the employee’s service period.
The Company recognizes compensation expense on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period of the award.
Equity instruments issued to nonemployees are recorded at their fair value on the measurement date and are subject to periodic adjustment as the underlying equity
instruments vest.
We determined that the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model is the most appropriate method for determining the estimated fair value for stock options or warrants.
The Black-Scholes Model requires the use of highly subjective and complex assumptions that determine the fair value of share-based awards, including the equity
instrument’s expected term and the price volatility of the underlying stock.
Segment Information
Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise about which separate financial information is available that is evaluated regularly by the chief
operating decision maker, or decision-making group, in deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing performance. The Company’s chief operating decision
maker is its senior management team. The Company has one operating segment that is dedicated to the “on demand” transportation business providing businesses
and private traveler’s access to book and schedule ground transportation online or by mobile device.
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Revenue Recognition
Revenues are generally recognized when an agreement exists and price is determinable, the service has been rendered, net of discounts, returns and allowance and
collectability is reasonably assured. These conditions are typically met when the trip has been completed. The Company utilizes third parties as transportation
providers for customers. The Company, acts as the principal and is the primary obligor in the arrangement with its customers, because i) has latitude in establishing
pricing, ii) customizes the services required to the particular customer needs, iii) has discretion in selection of transportation providers, and iv) assumes all credit
risk in the transactions.
Cost of Sales
Cost of sales includes cost of the various transportation providers, merchant fees related to each transaction and cost of providing customer support services.
Income Taxes
The provision for income taxes is determined using the asset and liability approach of accounting for income taxes. Under this approach, deferred taxes represent
the future tax consequences expected to occur when the reported amounts of assets and liabilities are recovered or paid. The provision for income taxes represents
income taxes paid or payable for the current year plus the change in deferred taxes during the year. Deferred taxes result from differences between the financial and
tax basis of the Company’s assets and liabilities and are adjusted for changes in tax rates and tax laws when changes are enacted. A valuation allowance is recorded
to reduce deferred tax assets when it is more likely than not that a tax benefit will not be realized.
We must assess the likelihood that the Company’s deferred tax assets will be recovered from future taxable income, and to the extent the Company believes that
recovery is not likely, we establish a valuation allowance. Management judgment is required in determining our provision for income taxes, deferred tax assets and
liabilities, and any valuation allowance recorded against the net deferred tax assets. We recorded a full valuation allowance as of December 31, 2017 and 2016.
Based on the available evidence, the Company believes it is more likely than not that it will not be able to utilize its deferred tax assets in the future. We intend to
maintain valuation allowances until sufficient evidence exists to support the reversal of such valuation allowances. We make estimates and judgments about its
future taxable income that are based on assumptions that are consistent with our plans. Should the actual amounts differ from our estimates, the carrying value of
our deferred tax assets could be materially impacted.
We recognize in the financial statements the impact of a tax position, if that position is more likely than not of being sustained on audit, based on the technical
merits of the position. The Company’s policy is to recognize interest and penalties accrued on any unrecognized tax benefits as a component of operating expense.
We do not believe there are any tax positions for which it is reasonably possible that the total amounts of unrecognized tax benefits will significantly increase or
decrease within twelve months of the reporting date. There were no penalties or interest liabilities accrued as of the years end December 31, 2017 or 2016, nor
were any penalties or interest costs included in expense for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016.
Advertising Costs
The Company expenses advertising costs when incurred. Advertising costs incurred amounted to approximately $60,000 and $9,000 for the years ended December
31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.
Comprehensive Income (Loss)
Comprehensive income (loss) represents the change in shareholders’ equity (deficit) of an enterprise, other than those resulting from shareholder transactions.
Accordingly, comprehensive income (loss) may include certain changes in shareholders’ equity (deficit) that are excluded from net income (loss). For the years
ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company’s comprehensive loss is the same as its net loss.
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Basic and Diluted Net Loss per Common Share
Basic net loss per common share is computed by dividing net loss by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted net
loss per common share is determined using the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during the period, adjusted for the dilutive effect of
common stock equivalents. In periods when losses are reported, the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding excludes common stock equivalents,
because their inclusion would be anti-dilutive.
Recently Issued Accounting Standards
In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-15, Presentation of Financial Statements – Going Concern (Topic 915): Disclosure of Uncertainties about an
Entity’s Ability to Continue as a Going Concern, which states that in connection with preparing financial statements for each annual and interim reporting period,
an entity’s management should evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the entity’s ability to
continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are issued (or within one year after the date that the financial statements are
available to be issued when applicable). The adoption of this update is not expected to have a material effect on our financial statements.
In February 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-03, Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs. This update changes the presentation of debt issuance
costs in the balance sheet. ASU 2015-03 requires debt issuance costs related to a recognized debt obligation to be presented in the balance sheet as a direct
deduction from the carrying amount of the related debt liability rather than being presented as an asset. Amortization of debt issuance costs will continue to be
reported as interest expense. In August 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-15, “Presentation and Subsequent Measurement of Debt Issuance Costs Associated with
Line-of Credit Arrangements.” This ASU clarified guidance in ASC 2015-03 stating that the SEC staff would not object to a company presenting debt issuance
costs related to a line-of-credit arrangement on the balance sheet as a deferred asset, regardless of whether there were any outstanding borrowings at period-end.
This update is effective for annual and interim periods beginning after December 15, 2015, which will require us to adopt these provisions in the first quarter of
2016. This update will be applied on a retrospective basis, wherein the balance sheet of each period presented will be adjusted to reflect the effects of applying the
new guidance.
In July 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-11, Earnings Per Share (Topic 260), Distinguishing Liabilities from Equity (Topic 480) and Derivatives and Hedging
(Topic 815): I. Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Down Round Features; II. Replacement of the Indefinite Deferral for Mandatorily Redeemable
Financial Instruments of Certain Nonpublic Entities and Certain Mandatorily Redeemable Noncontrolling Interests with a Scope Exception, (ASU 2017-11). Part I
of this update addresses the complexity of accounting for certain financial instruments with down round features. Down round features are features of certain
equity-linked instruments (or embedded features) that result in the strike price being reduced on the basis of the pricing of future equity offerings. Current
accounting guidance creates cost and complexity for entities that issue financial instruments (such as warrants and convertible instruments) with down round
features that require fair value measurement of the entire instrument or conversion option. Part II of this update addresses the difficulty of navigating Topic 480,
Distinguishing Liabilities from Equity, because of the existence of extensive pending content in the FASB Accounting Standards Codification. This pending
content is the result of the indefinite deferral of accounting requirements about mandatorily redeemable financial instruments of certain nonpublic entities and
certain mandatorily redeemable noncontrolling interests. The amendments in Part II of this update do not have an accounting effect. This ASU is effective for fiscal
years, and interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2018. The Company is currently assessing the potential impact of adopting ASU 201711 on its financial statements and related disclosures.
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In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842) which requires companies leasing assets to recognize on their balance sheet a liability to
make lease payments (the lease liability) and a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease term on contracts longer than one
year. The lessee is permitted to make an accounting policy election to not recognize lease assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases. How leases are recorded
on the balance sheet represents a significant change from previous GAAP guidance in Topic 840. ASU 2016-02 maintains a distinction between finance leases and
operating leases similar to the distinction under previous lease guidance for capital leases and operating leases. The Company is currently evaluating the effect that
adopting this new accounting guidance will have on its consolidated results of operations, cash flows and financial position. ASU 2016-02 is effective for fiscal
periods beginning after December 15, 2018, and early adoption is permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the effect that adopting this new accounting
guidance will have on its consolidated results of operations, cash flows and financial position.
In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers , issued as a new Topic, ASC Topic 606. The new revenue recognition
standard supersedes all existing revenue recognition guidance. Under this ASU, an entity should recognize revenue when it transfers promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. ASU 2015-14, issued in
August 2015, deferred the effective date of ASU 2014-09 to the first quarter of 2018, with early adoption permitted in the first quarter of 2017. The Company is
currently evaluating the effect that adopting this new accounting guidance will have on its consolidated results of operations, cash flows and financial position.
In March, April, May, and December 2016, the FASB issued the following updates, respectively, to provide supplemental adoption guidance and clarification to
ASU 2014-09. These standards must be adopted concurrently upon the adoption of ASU 2014-09. We are currently evaluating the potential effects of adopting the
provisions of these updates.
•

ASU No. 2016-08, Revenue from Contracts with Customers: Principal versus Agent Considerations (Reporting Revenue Gross versus Net)

•

ASU No. 2016-10, Revenue from Contracts with Customers: Identifying Performance Obligations and Licensing;

•

ASU No. 2016-12, Revenue from Contracts with Customers: Narrow-Scope Improvements and Practical Expedients; and

•

ASU No. 2016-19, Technical Corrections and Improvements
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Note 2 – Property and Equipment
Property and equipment consisted of the following as of December 31,:

Furniture and fixtures
Software
Equipment

$

Accumulated depreciation
Property and equipment, net

$

2017
18,000
10,000
1,000
29,000
(12,000)
17,000

2016
$

$

10,000
1,000
11,000
(11,000)
-

Depreciation expense for the years ended, December 31, 2017 and 2016 was $1,000 and $2,000, respectively.
Note 3 - Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities consisted of the following as of December 31,

Accounts payable
Accrued expense
Interest payable - related party
Accrued stock compensation
Total accounts payable and accrued liabilities

$

$

2017
727,000
97,000
17,000
841,000

$

$

2016
96,000
27,000
12,000
360,000
495,000

Note 4 – Line of credit – Related Party
On December 31, 2013, the Company entered into an unsecured line of credit agreement with a credit limit of up to $200,000 with an officer and a stockholder,
bearing interest at a fixed rate of 7.5% per annum. Net advances and any accrued and unpaid interest are due no later than December 2018. The outstanding
balance on the line of credit at December 31, 2017 and 2016 was $40,000 and $86,000, respectively, and accrued and unpaid interest was $17,000 and $12,000 as
of December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.
Note 5 – Convertible Promissory Notes
As of December 31, 2017, convertible promissory notes payable consisted of the following:
Principal
Principal Converted
Net balance
Additional principal for penalties
Debt issuance cost
Discount for warrants issued
Discount for beneficial conversion feature
Amortization of discount
Notes payable, net

F-13

$

643,000
(46,000)
597,000
429,000
(72,000)
(84,000)
(237,000)
278,000
$ 911,000

In March 2017, the Company issued two convertible promissory notes both in the amount of $110,000 for an aggregate principal amount of $220,000 (the “March
Notes”). The total proceeds were approximately $197,000, due to approximately $23,000 for debt issuance costs. Also, the Company paid a one-time fee of
$10,000 to a consultant related to services provided associated with the March Notes. The March Notes accrue interest at 10% per annum with the principal and
accrued interest due and payable in October 2017. The principal amount and all accrued interest are convertible into shares of the Company’s common stock at a
rate $0.10 per share, subject to adjustments for events of default. Each holder was issued a warrant to purchase 187,500 shares, for a total of 375,000 shares, of the
Company’s common stock with an exercise price of $0.12 per share, subject to adjustments. There is an adjustment to the exercise price if and when the Company
sells or grants an option to purchase any common stock or securities entitling the right to acquire shares of the Company’s common stock at an effective price per
share less than the exercise price. Events of default include non-compliance with the Exchange Act. Should the Company be found in default, the interest rate
would be adjusted to 24%, and the conversion rate would be adjusted to the lower of $0.10 or 65% of the average of the 2 lowest sale prices and trading prices as
defined in the agreements during the 25 consecutive trading days immediately preceding the conversion date or the closing bid price, whichever is lower, or
$0.00001 if the Company loses the bid. If the price of the stock goes below $0.05, the 65% figure shall reduce to 50%. For one of the note, if the borrower fails to
maintain its status as "DTC Eligible" for any reason or if the conversion price is less than $0.01, the Variable conversion price shall be redefined to mean forty
percent (40%) multiple by the Market Price. For the other note, if the Company is unable to deliver the convertible shares in a timely manner, an additional 15%
discount was provided to one of the convertible note.
The Company determined that the adjustments to the exercise price of the warrants caused the warrants to be treated as a derivative in accordance with ASC 81815 Derivatives and Hedging. Since the warrants are a derivative they are accounted for at fair value on the date of issuance. The fair value of $52,000, at issuance,
was determined using the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model. At each reporting period, the change in fair value will be recorded in the statement of operations
under other income (expense). The assumptions used in the Black-Scholes Pricing Model were term of the warrants 5 years, volatility rate of 429% - 434%, rate of
quarterly dividends 0% and a risk free interest rate of 2.02% - 2.03%
The March Notes embedded conversion price of $0.10 was below market rate on the date of issuance. The discount allocated to the beneficial conversion feature
was approximately $123,000.
As of December 31, 2017, several of the March Notes default provisions were triggered. The defaults caused i) the interest rate to adjust to 24%, ii) the conversion
price to be 35% and 40% of the of the average of the 2 lowest sale prices and trading prices as defined in the agreements during the 25 consecutive trading days
immediately preceding the conversion date or the closing bid price, whichever is lower, or $0.00001 if the Company loses the bid and iii) the number shares and
strike price for the warrants were adjusted to a total of 8,294,931 and $0.005425 per share, respectively.
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In May 2017, the Company issued a convertible promissory note in the amount of $110,000 (the “May Note”). The total proceeds were approximately $99,000,
due to approximately $11,000 for debt issuance costs. Also, the Company paid a one-time fee of $10,000 to a consultant related to services provided associated
with the May Note. The May Note accrues interest at 10% per annum with the principal and accrued interest due and payable in December 2017. The principal
amount and all accrued interest are convertible into shares of the Company’s common stock at a rate $0.10 per share, subject to adjustments for events of default.
The holder was issued a warrant to purchase 187,500 shares of the Company’s common stock with an exercise price of $0.12 per share, subject to adjustments.
There is an adjustment to the exercise price if an and when the Company sells or grants an option to purchase any common stock or securities entitling the right to
acquire shares of the Company’s common stock at an effective price per share less than the exercise price. Events of default include non-compliance with the
Exchange Act. Should the Company be found in default, the interest rate would be adjusted to 24%, and the conversion rate would be adjusted to the lower of
$0.10 or 65% of the average of the 2 lowest sale prices and trading prices as defined in the agreements during the 25 consecutive trading days immediately
preceding the conversion date or the closing bid price, whichever is lower, or $0.00001 if the Company loses the bid. If the price of the stock goes below $0.05, the
65% figure shall reduce to 50%. If the borrower fails to maintain its status as "DTC Eligible" for any reason or if the conversion price is less than $0.01, the
Variable conversion price shall be redefined to mean forty percent (40%) multiple by the Market Price. There is also an adjustment if the stock becomes chilled or
in the case of dilutive issuances.
The Company determined that the adjustments to the exercise price of the warrants caused the warrants to be treated as a derivative in accordance with ASC 81815 Derivatives and Hedging. Since the warrants are a derivative they are accounted for at fair value on the date of issuance. The fair value $14,000, at issuance,
was determined using the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model. At each reporting period, the change in fair value will be recorded in the statement of operations
under other income (expense). The assumptions used in the Black-Scholes Pricing Model were term of the warrants 5 years, volatility rate of 332%, rate of
quarterly dividends 0% and a risk-free interest rate of 1.79%
The Notes embedded effective conversion price was below market rate on the date of issuance. The discount allocated to the beneficial conversion feature was
approximately $9,000.
As of December 31, 2017, the Company triggered several of the May Note default provisions. The defaults caused i) the interest rate to adjust to 24%, ii) the
conversion price to be 40% of the of the average of the 2 lowest sale prices and trading prices as defined in the agreements during the 25 consecutive trading days
immediately preceding the conversion date or the closing bid price, whichever is lower, or $0.00001 if the Company loses the bid and iii) the number of shares and
strike price for the warrants were adjusted to 4,147,465 and $0.005425 per share, respectively.
In July 2017, the Company issued a convertible promissory note in the amount of $110,000 (the “July Note”). The total proceeds were approximately $100,000,
due to approximately $10,000 for debt issuance costs. Also, the Company paid a one-time fee of $5,000 to a consultant related to services provided associated with
the July Note. The July Note accrues interest at 10% per annum with the principal and accrued interest due and payable in July 2018. The principal amount and all
accrued interest are convertible into shares of the Company’s common stock at a rate $0.10 per share, subject to adjustments for events of default. The holder was
issued a warrant to purchase 187,500 shares of the Company’s common stock with an exercise price of $0.12 per share, subject to adjustments. There is an
adjustment to the exercise price if an and when the Company sells or grants an option to purchase any common stock or securities entitling the right to acquire
shares of the Company’s common stock at an effective price per share less than the exercise price. Events of default include non-compliance with the Exchange
Act. Should the Company be found in default, the interest rate would be adjusted to 24%, and the conversion rate would be adjusted to the lower of $0.10 or 60%
of the average of the 2 lowest sale prices and trading prices as defined in the agreements during the 25 consecutive trading days immediately preceding the
conversion date or the closing bid price, whichever is lower, or $0.00001 if the Company loses the bid. If the Company is unable to deliver the convertible shares
in a timely manner, an additional 15% discount was provided. There is also an adjustment if the stock becomes chilled or in the case of dilutive issuances.
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The Company determined that the adjustments to the exercise price of the warrants caused the warrants to be treated as a derivative in accordance with ASC 81815 Derivatives and Hedging. Since the warrants are a derivative they are accounted for at fair value on the date of issuance. The fair value $16,000, at issuance,
was determined using the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model. At each reporting period, the change in fair value will be recorded in the statement of operations
under other income (expense). The assumptions used in the Black-Scholes Pricing Model were term of the warrants 5 years, volatility rate of 323%, rate of
quarterly dividends 0% and a risk-free interest rate of 1.87%
The Notes embedded effective conversion price was below market rate on the date of issuance. The discount allocated to the beneficial conversion feature was
approximately $18,000.
As of December 31, 2017, the Company triggered several of the May Note default provisions. The defaults caused i) the interest rate to adjust to 24%, ii) the
conversion price to be 30% of the of the average of the 2 lowest sale prices and trading prices as defined in the agreements during the 25 consecutive trading days
immediately preceding the conversion date or the closing bid price, whichever is lower, or $0.00001 if the Company loses the bid and iii) the number shares and
strike price for the warrants were adjusted to 4,147,465 and $0.005425 per share, respectively.
In December 2017, the Company issued a convertible promissory note in the amount of $88,000 (the “December Note”). The total proceeds were approximately
$85,000, due to approximately $3,000 for debt issuance costs. The December Note accrues interest at 8% per annum with the principal and accrued interest due
and payable in September 2018. The principal amount and all accrued interest are convertible into shares of the Company’s common stock beginning on the 181 st
day from the issuance date until the later of the maturity date or upon an event of default. The principal and all unpaid and accrued interest is convertible at a rate
calculated at 63% of the average for the lowest three trading prices for the Company’s common stock during the 10-day period ending on the latest complete
trading day prior to the conversion date. Events of default include, the following among others, non-compliance with the Exchange Act, delisting of the Company’s
common stock, financial statement restatements and cross default with other financial instruments. Should the Company be found in default, the interest rate would
be adjusted to 22% and the amount due would be equal to 150% or 200% of the sum of the then outstanding principal amount of the note, accrued and unpaid
interest on the unpaid principal amount of the note to the date of payment, default interest, if any, on the amounts referred to above.
The December Note contains a prepayment provision. If the December Note is paid in full prior to 30 days after the issued date the principal payment would be
112% of the amount of the promissory note. The prepayment penalty increase by 5% for each 30-day period following for total amount of 137% on the 180 th day,
at which the Company shall have no right to prepay the principal amount.
The Company determined that the variable conversion rate of the December Note would be an embedded feature to be bifurcated and accounted for as a derivative
in accordance with ASC 818-15 Derivatives and Hedging. Therefore, the conversion feature was accounted for at fair value on the date of issuance. The fair value
$174,000, at issuance, was determined using the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model. At each reporting period, the change in fair value will be recorded in the
statement of operations under other income (expense). The assumptions used in the Black-Scholes Pricing Model was a term of 0.77 years, volatility rate of 281%,
rate of quarterly dividends 0% and a risk free interest rate of 1.73%. The original fair value was first recorded as a note discount for $88,000 and the remaining
$86,000 was recorded as financing expenses.
In accordance with ASC 470 - Debt, the Company has allocated the cash proceeds amount of the March, May, July and December Notes between the debt issuance
costs, warrants and beneficial conversion feature. The debt issuance cost totaled approximately $72,000, the fair value of the warrants allocated totaled
approximately $84,000 and the embedded beneficial conversion totaled approximately $237,000 are being amortized and expensed over the term of the loans. For
the year ended December 31, 2017, the amortization expense was approximately $278,000.
During the year ended December 31, 2017, the certain of the convertible note holders converted principal and accrued interest of approximately $46,000 and
$11,000, respectively. The Company was required to issue 4,900,000 shares of the Company’s common stock with a fair market value, as of the dates of issuance,
of approximately $151,000.
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As of December 31, 2017, the Company is in default for the March, May and July Notes. Both the March and May Notes have matured, and the July Note is in
cross default. The Company was required to record a $15,000, in the aggregate $30,000, default penalty for each of the March and May Note not being paid on
maturity.
One of the March Notes and the May note require the Company to record a $15,000, in aggregate $30,000, if the conversion price drops below $0.01.
One of the March Notes and the July Note required the Company to record a penalty of 100% of the then outstanding principal and interest as of the date of
default. The penalty amount was approximately $204,000. The other March Note and the May Note required the Company to record a penalty of 50% of the then
outstanding principal and interest as of the date of default. The penalty amount was approximately $225,000.
The total penalties amounted to approximately $429,000, which was recoded as a financing expense.
Since the March, May and July Notes were in default the Company was required to record a derivative liability for the variable conversion price. The derivative as
of the date of default was approximately $301,000, which was recorded as a financing expense.
As of December 31, 2017, the Company’s derivative liabilities were $6,128,000. The derivative liabilities consisted of the fair value of the Company’s issued and
outstanding warrants to purchase the Company’s common stock and the beneficial conversion feature for the outstanding convertible promissory notes. The fair
value was determined as of December 31, 2017 using the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model. The assumptions used in the Black-Scholes Pricing Model was
terms ranging between .001 and 5.0 years, volatility rate of 281%, rate of quarterly dividends 0% and a risk-free interest rate of 1.47%.
Also, see Note – 6 Equity Line of Credit for additional convertible promissory notes.
Note 6 – Equity Line of Credit
In August 2017, the Company entered into equity purchase agreements (each a “Purchase Agreement” and collectively, the “Purchase Agreements”) with each of
L2 Capital, LLC (”L2 Capital”) and Kodiak Capital Group, LLC (“Kodiak Capital”) (L2 Capital and Kodiak Capital are hereinafter each referred to as a
“Purchaser” and collectively as the “Purchasers”). Under the Purchase Agreements, the Company may from time to time, in its discretion, sell shares of its
common stock to each Purchaser for aggregate gross proceeds of up to $1,000,000. Unless terminated earlier, each Purchaser’s purchase commitment will
automatically terminate on the earlier of the date on which such Purchaser shall have purchased Company shares pursuant to the Purchase Agreement for an
aggregate purchase price of $1,000,000, or July 31, 2019. The Company has no obligation to sell any shares under any Purchase Agreement.
As provided in each Purchase Agreement, the Company may require the Purchaser to purchase shares of common stock from time to time by delivering a put
notice to such Purchaser specifying the total number of shares to be purchased (such number of shares multiplied by the purchase price described below, the
“Investment Amount”); provided there must be a minimum of ten trading days between delivery of each put notice. The Company may determine the Investment
Amount provided that such amount may not be lower than $25,000. A Purchaser will have no obligation to purchase shares under the applicable Purchase
Agreement to the extent that such purchase would cause such Purchaser to own more than 9.99% of the Company’s common stock (the “Beneficial Ownership
Limitation”).
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For each share of the Company’s common stock purchased under a Purchase Agreement, the Purchaser will pay a purchase price equal to 80% of the market price,
which is defined as the lowest VWAP on the principal trading platform for the Company’s common stock, as reported by Bloomberg Finance L.P., during the five
consecutive Trading Days including and immediately prior to the settlement date of the sale, which in most circumstances will be the trading day immediately
following the “Put Date,” or the date that a put notice is delivered to the applicable Purchaser (the “Pricing Period”). Each Purchaser’s obligation to purchase
shares is subject to customary closing conditions, including without limitation a requirement that a registration statement remain effective registering the resale by
such Purchaser of the shares to be issued. A Purchase Agreement is not transferable and any benefits attached thereto may not be assigned.
Each Purchase Agreement contains covenants, representations and warranties of the Company and the Purchaser that are typical for transactions of this type. In
addition, the Company and each Purchaser have granted each other customary indemnification rights in connection with the applicable Purchase Agreement. Each
Purchase Agreement may be terminated by the Company at any time.
In connection with the Purchase Agreements, the Company also entered into registration rights Agreement with the applicable Purchaser requiring the Company to
prepare and file, within 30 days, a registration statement registering the resale by such Purchaser of shares to be issued under the applicable Purchase Agreement,
to use commercially reasonable efforts to cause such registration statement to become effective, and to keep such registration statement effective until (i) the date
when such Purchaser may sell all the shares under Rule 144 without volume limitations, or (ii) the date such Purchaser no longer owns any of the shares.
As a commitment fee under the Purchase Agreements, the Company issued to each Purchaser a convertible promissory note (each a “L2 Note” and collectively, the
“L2 Notes”) dated August 11, 2017 in the principal amount of $57,500 with interest at the rate of 8% per annum payable six months from the issue date, for a total
of $115,000. The principal amount and accrued interest under each L2 Note are convertible at the option of the holder into shares of the Company’s common stock
at a variable conversion Price of 70% of the lowest trading price during the thirty trading day period prior to the conversion date. Conversion of the L2 Notes is
subject to the Beneficial Ownership Limitation. The L2 Notes have been treated for accounting purposes as a commitment fee. The commitment fee was expensed
on the issuance of the convertible promissory notes.
As an additional commitment fee, the Company issued to each Purchaser a common stock purchase Warrant (each a “L2 Warrant” and collectively, the “L2
Warrants”) to purchase up to 5,000,000 shares of the Company’s common stock, for a total of 10,000,000 shares, at an initial exercise price of $0.10 per share. The
exercise price and number of warrant shares are subject to adjustments provided for in the L2 Warrant including full ratchet price protection for equity issuances.
Exercise of the L2 Warrants is subject to the Beneficial Ownership Limitation.
The Company determined that the adjustments to the exercise price of the warrants caused the warrants to be treated as a derivative in accordance with ASC 81815 Derivatives and Hedging. Since the warrants are a derivative they are accounted for at fair value on the date of issuance. The fair value was determined using
the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model. At each reporting period, the change in fair value will be recorded in the statement of operations under other income
(expense). The assumptions used in the Black-Scholes Pricing Model were term of the warrants 5 years, volatility rate of 309%, rate of quarterly dividends 0% and
a risk free interest rate of 1.47%
In September 2017, the Company canceled the Purchase Agreement with Kodiak Capital. Concurrently, with the cancelation, L2 Capital assumed the total
commitment under the Purchase Agreement. As such, L2 Capital was issued the additional L2 Note and L2 Warrants, which in effect is a transfer of notes and
warrants from Kodiak to L2.
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Note 7 – Commitments and Contingencies
Independent Contractor Drivers
As part of the Company’s services, the Company contracts with people including drivers to supply the services to the Company’s customers. The Company has
evaluated the agreements and the Company has determined that these people are independent contractors and not employees.
Lease Agreement
In September 2017, effective October 1, 2017, the Company entered into an agreement to lease office space for its corporate headquarters in Culver City
California. The lease is for a term of five years and five months.
Future minimum lease payments under the non-cancelable operating lease for the years ending December 31, are as follows:

2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
thereafter
Total minimum future lease payments

Amount
242,000
250,000
259,000
271,000
285,000
48,000
$ 1,355,000
$

For the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company incurred approximately $60,000 of rent expense under this lease agreement.
Litigation
During the ordinary course of business, the Company is subject to various claims and litigation. Management believes that the outcome of such claims or litigation
will not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position, results of operations or cash flow.
Employment Agreement
In December 2017, the Company entered into an employment agreement (“Employment Agreement”) with the Company’s Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) with
a term from January 1, 2018 and expiring on December 31, 2020 (“Term”). Effective as of the expiration date and as of each annual anniversary date thereof, the
Term shall be extended for an additional one-year period unless, (i) not later than 6 months prior to such an automatic extension date, the Company shall have
given written notice to the CEO that the Term shall not be so extended or (ii) not later than six months prior to such an automatic extension date, the CEO shall
have given written notice to the Company that the Term shall not be so extended. If the Company cancels the Agreement, the CEO is entitled to severance pay
equal to one year of the CEO’s base annual salary at the rate applicable on the date of cancellation.
The Agreement provides the CEO with an annual salary of $150,000 for the year ending December 31, 2018, $250,000 for each of the years ending December 31,
2019 and 2020. Also, the CEO was granted an option to purchase 31,000,000 shares of the Company’s common stock vesting 7,000,000 options on December 31,
2017 and 8,000,000 options on each date of December 31, 2018, 2019 and 2020 with an exercise price of $0.0237.
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Also, the Agreement provides for an inventive bonus for each of the years ending December 31, 2018, 2019 and 2020. The milestone are as follows:
Milestones to be achieved by the Company
Annual revenue growth
Stock price increase from fourth quarter Variable Weighted
Average Stock Price (“VWAP”) to the following years 4Q
VWAP
Number of new Enterprise accounts with avg. monthly
revenue greater than $2,000
Timely filing of all required disclosures
Equity capital raised
Global driver supply
Total

Percentage of bonus based
on annual salary
40%

20%
20%
5%
10%
5%
100%

Pass
(25%)
100%

Met (50%)
200%

Exceeded
(100%)
300%

200%
30

400%
65

600%
100

All
$1mm
+ 20%

All
$2.5mm
+ 40%

All
$4mm
+60%

Note 8 – Stockholders’ Equity
Shares of the Company’s Stock
In August 2017, the Company amended its articles of incorporation to authorize two classes of stock, designated as common stock and preferred stock. The number
of shares of common stock authorized was 500,000,000 with a par value of $0.001 per share. The number of shares of preferred stock authorized was 10,000,000
with a par value of $0.001 per share.
In October 2017, the Board of Directors, with the approval of a majority vote of its shareholders approved the filing of a Certificate of Designation establishing the
designations, preferences, limitations and relative rights of the Company’s Series A Preferred Stock (the “Designation” and the “Series A Preferred Stock”). The
Board of Directors authorized the designation of 1,000,000 shares of series A preferred stock. The terms of the Certificate of Designation of the series A preferred
stock, include the right to vote in aggregate, on all shareholder matters equal to 1,000 votes per share of series A preferred stock and each series A preferred stock
share are not convertible into shares of our common stock.
Unissued Common Stock
As of April 6, 2018, all unissued common stock are reserved for the conversion of the Company’s Convertible Promissory Notes.
Issuance of Common stock
In 2016, the Company entered into agreements for consulting services from September 2016 through February 2017, under which the Company agreed to issue
6,000,000 shares of common stock. The Company recognized $360,000 of expense related to these services in 2016. For the year ended December 31, 2017, the
Company recognized an additional expense of $360,000 related to these services and issued 6,000,000 shares of common stock.
In May 2017, the Company entered into an agreement for consulting and marketing services. As part of the agreement, the consultant will be compensated with the
issuance of 1,750,000 shares of the Company’s common stock (“Award Shares”). The Award Shares vest on the following dates: 700,000 on May 22, 2017,
210,000 shares on each of the following dates, August 4, 2017, September 1, 2017, September 9, 2017 and October 27, 2017, provided the consultant continues to
provide services on such dates. Any of the Award Shares which become vested shall be issued and delivered to the consultant on the dates specified above. The
Company will account for the Award Shares using the graded vesting method with the total value of the Award Shares calculated on the date the Award Shares are
issued to the consultant. For accounting purposes, the Award Shares will be revalued at each reporting date with the final Award Shares value being the date the
Award Shares are delivered to the consultant. The Company recorded an expense of $85,000 for the issuance of the 1,120,000 shares.
Also in May 2017, the Company entered into an agreement for financing consulting services for a period of six months. As part of the consultant was to receive
1,200,000 shares of the Company’s common stock with 600,000 shares issued upon the execution of the agreement and the remaining 600,000 shares issued 90
days from the execution of the agreement. The Company issued the first tranche of shares, but the contract was canceled prior to the issuance of the second
tranche. For the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company recorded an expense of approximately $48,000 for the fair value of the shares issued. The fair value
was determined based on the fair market value of the Company’s common stock on the date of issuance.
Stock Options
In December 2017, the Company granted the CEO options (“Options”) to purchase 31,000,000 shares of the Company’s common stock vesting 7,000,000 options
on December 31, 2017 and 8,000,000 options on each date of December 31, 2018, 2019 and 2020 with an exercise price of $0.0237. The Options had contractual
live of five years, had exercise price of $0.0237 and had vesting terms over three years. The Company will expense the value of the Options over the vesting period
of three years. The Company valued the Options using the Black-Scholes pricing model on the date of grant with and expected live of five years, a risk-free interest
rate of 2.2%, expected volatility of 281% and an annual dividend yield of zero. The total value of the options issued was approximately $588,000 which will be
recognized over vesting terms. The risk-free interest rate assumption for Options granted is based upon observed interest rates on the United States government
securities appropriate for the expected term of the Options. The expected term of the Option was calculated using the simplified method which takes into
consideration the contractual and vesting terms of the options. The Company determined the expected volatility assumption for the Options using the historical
volatility of the Company’s common stock. The dividend yield assumption for the Options is based on the Company’s history and expectation of dividend payouts.
The Company has never declared or paid any cash dividends on its common stock, and the Company does not anticipate paying any cash dividends in the
foreseeable future.
The total options outstanding as of December 31, 2017 was 31,000,000 with an exercise price of $0.0237 and a remaining life of five years. Of the stock options
outstanding as of December 31, 2017, 7,000,000 of the options were exercisable.
As of December 31, 2017, there was approximately $455,000 of total unrecognized compensation cost for the Options. That cost is expected to be recognized over
the next three years as follows is approximately: 2018 - $278,000, 2019 - $127,000, and 2020 - $50,000.
Stock option expense for the year ended December 31, 2017 was $133,000 and included within officers salary in the accompanying statement of operations.

Warrants
The following table summarizes the issued and outstanding warrants

Balance outstanding as of January 1, 2017
Issued with March Notes
Issued with March Notes
Issued with May Notes
Issued with July Notes
Issued with equity line of credit
Issued with equity line of credit
Balance outstanding as of December 31, 2017

Number of Warrants
4,147,465
4,147,465
4,147,465
4,147,465
89,285,714
89,285,714
195,161,288
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Strike Price
0.0054
0.0054
0.0054
0.0054
0.0056
0.0056

Issue Date
3/2/2017
3/6/2017
5/26/2017
7/14/2017
8/11/2017
9/15/2017

Termination Date
3/1/2022
3/5/2022
5/25/2022
7/13/2022
8/10/2022
9/14/2022

As of December 31, 2017, the Company has an additional 179,935,554 of potential dilutive shares associated with the outstanding convertible promissory notes as
of December 31, 2017.
Note 9 - Income Tax
The Company had no deferred tax provision for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 due to a full valuation allowance on its net deferred tax assets. At
December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company had cumulative federal and state net operating loss carry forwards of approximately $4,800,000 and $2,500,000,
respectively, which begin to expire in 2034.
The Company recognizes deferred tax assets to the extent that it believes these assets are more likely than not to be realized. In making such a determination, the
Company considers all available positive and negative evidence, including future reversals of existing taxable temporary differences, projected future taxable
income and tax planning.
Components of net deferred taxes, including a full valuation allowance, consisted of the follows at December 31,:
2017
Deferred tax assets:
Net operating loss carryforward
Stock based compensation
Accrued expenses
State tax - deferred
Total deferred tax assets

$

Less: Valuation allowance

2016

1,436,000
39,000
17,000
(100,000)
1,392,000

$

(1,392,000)

Net deferred tax assets

$

1,028,000
154,000
(81,000)
1,101,000
(1,101,000)

-

$

-

Reconciliations of the United States federal statutory rate to the actual tax rate are as follows for the period ended December 31:
2017
Federal tax at statutory rate
Impact of federal tax rate change
Permanent differences:
Derivative expense
State taxes, net of federal benefit
Other
Temporary differences:
Change in valuation allowance
Total provision

2016
34.0
(6.9)

%

34.0
-

(24.8)
1.8
(0.4)

6.0
4.8

(3.7)
-

(44.8)
-

%

%

%

The Company reorganized from a sole proprietorship to a corporation in October 2014. Accordingly, net operating losses that were incurred prior to the
reorganization were not carried over to the corporation. The valuation allowance for deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 was $1,392,000 and
$1,101,000, respectively. The net operating losses will begin to expire in 2034. Management believes it is more likely than not that the deferred tax assets as of
December 31, 2017 will not be realized based on the management’s assessment that the deductions ultimately recognized for tax purposes will be fully utilized.
Therefore, full valuation allowances were set up for these deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2017 and 2016.
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For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company’s effective tax rate differs from the federal statutory rate due to state income taxes, nondeductible
expenses, and the full valuation allowance.
Note 10 - Subsequent Events
In accordance with ASC 855, “Subsequent Events”, the Company has evaluated all subsequent events through April 13, 2018. The following event have occurred:
Conversion of Convertible Promissory Notes
As of the issuance of these financial statements the Company issued 12,700,000 shares of the Company’s common stock for the conversion of approximately
$44,000 and $7,000 of principal and accrued interest for the March Notes.
Issuance of Convertible Promissory Note
In February 2018, the Company issued a convertible promissory note in the amount of $43,000 (the “February 2018 Note”). The total proceeds were approximately
$40,000, due to approximately $3,000 for debt issuance costs. The February 2018 Note accrues interest at 8% per annum with the principal and accrued interest
due and payable in November 2018. The principal amount and all accrued interest are convertible into shares of the Company’s common stock beginning on the
181 st day from the issuance date until the later of the maturity date or upon an event of default. The principal and all unpaid and accrued interest is convertible at a
rate calculated at 63% of the average for the lowest three trading prices for the Company’s common stock during the 10-day period ending on the latest complete
trading day prior to the conversion date. Events of default include, the following among others, non-compliance with the Exchange Act, delisting of the Company’s
common stock, financial statement restatements and cross default with other financial instruments. Should the Company be found in default, the interest rate would
be adjusted to 22% and the amount do would be equal to 150% times the sum of the then outstanding principal amount of the note, accrued and unpaid interest on
the unpaid principal amount of the note to the date of payment, default interest, if any, on the amounts referred to above. The February 2018 Note contains a
prepayment provision. If the February 2018 Note is paid in full prior to 30 days after the issued date the principal payment would be 112% of the amount of the
promissory note. The prepayment penalty increase by 5% for each 30-day period following for total amount of 137% on the 180 th day, at which the Company
shall have no right to prepay the principal amount.
Business Credit Loans
Subsequent to December 31, 2017, the Company borrowed approximately $206,000 from several finance companies. The total amount to be repaid is
approximately $260,000. The payment terms vary from daily payments, approximately $1,222 over four to six months, weekly payments, of approximately $2,300
over twelve months, and monthly payments, of approximately $2,100, over the next 12 months.
In February 2018, the Company amended its articles of incorporation to authorize two classes of stock, designated as common stock and preferred stock. The
number of shares of common stock authorized was 700,000,000 with a par value of $0.001 per share. The number of shares of preferred stock authorized was
10,000,000 with a par value of $0.001 per share.
In April 2018, the Company amended its articles of incorporation to authorize two classes of stock, designated as common stock and preferred stock. The number
of shares of common stock authorized was 1,200,000,000 with a par value of $0.001 per share. The number of shares of preferred stock authorized was 10,000,000
with a par value of $0.001 per share.
Issuance of Preferred Stock
In January 2018, the Company agreed to convert $50,000, of the Deferred compensation – Officer, into 1,000,000 shares of Series A Preferred Stock.
In January 2018, the Company agreed for the CEO to convert approximately $166,000 of amounts owed to the CEO for the exercise of 7,000,000 stock options.
However, the Company did not have enough available shares of the Company’s common stock to fulfil the exercise.
F-23

Item 9. Changes In and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
On February 16, 2017, the Company dismissed its independent registered public accounting firm, Squar Milner LLP (the “Former Accountant”). The Company's
decision to dismiss the Former Accountant was approved by its Board of Directors on March 1, 2017.
The reports of the Former Accountant on Flitways’ financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 contained no adverse opinion or
disclaimer of opinion and were modified as to uncertainty regarding Flitways’ ability to continue as a going concern. The Former Accountant identified several
control deficiencies which were deemed to be material weaknesses in the Company ’ s internal control by the Former Accountant. The material weaknesses
identified were the following:

·

Inadequate design of internal control over the preparation of the financial statements being audited.

·

Inadequate design of internal control over a significant account or process.

·

Inadequate documentation of the components of internal control.

·

Insufficient control consciousness within the Company.

·

Failure to identify material misstatement and assessing the risk of material misstatement.

·

Ineffective response to identified significant risks.

·

Absence of segregation of duties within a significant account or process.

·

Absence of controls over the safeguarding of assets.

·

Inadequate design of information technology (IT) general and application controls that prevent the information system from providing
complete and accurate information consistent with financial reporting objectives and current needs.

·

Lack of the qualifications and training to fulfill accounting functions.

·

Inadequate design of monitoring controls used to assess the design and operating effectiveness of the Company ’ s internal control over time.

·

Absence of a risk assessment process within the Company.

Since October 27, 2016 (the date of appointment of the Former Accountant) through to February 16, 2017, the date of dismissal, there have been no disagreements
with the Former Accountant on any matter of accounting principles or practices, financial statement disclosure or auditing scope or procedure, which
disagreements, if not resolved to the satisfaction of the Former Accountant, would have caused the Former Accountant to make reference thereto in its report on
the Company’s financial statements.
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Effective March 3, 2017, the Company engaged Rose, Snyder & Jacobs LLP (“Rose, Snyder & Jacobs”) to serve as the Company’s new independent registered
public accounting firm. The engagement of Rose, Snyder & Jacobs as the Company’s new independent registered public accounting firm was approved by the
Company’s Board of Directors. Neither the Company, nor anyone on its behalf, consulted Rose, Snyder & Jacobs during the Company’s two most recent fiscal
years and any subsequent interim period prior to the Company’s engagement of Rose, Snyder & Jacobs regarding any of the matters set forth in Items 304(a)(2)(i)
and (ii) of Regulation S-K.
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures
Disclosure controls and procedures are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the reports filed or submitted under the Exchange Act is
recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time period specified in the SEC's rules and forms. Disclosure controls and procedures include, without
limitation, controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the reports filed under the Exchange Act is accumulated and
communicated to management, including the Chief Executive Officer covered by this report, we carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the
participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our
disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31, 2017 (the “Evaluation Date”). Based upon the evaluation of our disclosure controls and procedures as of the
Evaluation Date, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were not effective because of the
identification of a material weakness in our internal control over financial reporting which is identified below, which we view as an integral part of our disclosure
controls and procedures.
Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such term is defined in Exchange Rule 13a15(f). Our internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance to our management and board of directors regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of the financial statements for external purposes in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.
Our internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of our assets; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and our receipts and expenditures
of are being made only in accordance with authorizations of our management and directors; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of our assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
Because of its inherent limitations, internal controls over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. All internal control systems, no matter how
well designed, have inherent limitations, including the possibility of human error and the circumvention of overriding controls. Accordingly, even effective internal
control over financial reporting can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
Our management assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2017. In making this assessment, it used the criteria
set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal Control-Integrated Framework. Based on its evaluation,
our management concluded that there are material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting and Management has concluded that the Company’s
internal controls over financial reporting are not effective as of December 31, 2017. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of control deficiencies,
in internal control over financial reporting such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of our annual or interim financial statements will
not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.
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The material weaknesses relate to inadequate internal controls over financial reporting, and the lack of segregation of duties in our financial reporting process. We
do not have a separately designated audit committee or independent director. These weaknesses are due to our lack of excess working capital required to hire
additional resources. To remedy these material weaknesses, we intend to engage an internal accountant to assist with financial reporting as soon as our finances
will allow.
Rose Snyder & Jacobs LLP, our registered independent public accounting firm, was not required to and has not issued a report concerning the effectiveness of our
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2017.
Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting
There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the fourth quarter of our fiscal year ended December 31, 2017 that have materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
Limitations on the Effectiveness of Controls
Our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, does not expect that our Disclosure Controls and internal controls will
prevent all errors and all fraud. A control system, no matter how well conceived and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the
objectives of the control system are met. Further, the design of a control system must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints, and the benefits of controls
must be considered relative to their costs. Because of the inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that
all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, within the Company have been detected. These inherent limitations include the realities that judgments in decisionmaking can be faulty, and that breakdowns can occur because of a simple error or mistake. Additionally, controls can be circumvented by the individual acts of
some persons, by collusion of two or more people, or by management or board override of the control.
The design of any system of controls also is based in part upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and there can be no assurance that any
design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions; over time, controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. Because of the inherent limitations in a cost-effective control system, misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.
Item 9B. Other Information.
None.
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PART III
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance.
Directors and Officers
Our bylaws allow the number of directors to be fixed by the Board of Directors. Our Board of Directors has fixed the number of directors at one.
Our current directors and officers are as follows:
Name
Tobi Mac Aro

Age
33

Position
Director, President, Chief Executive Officer,
Chief Financial Officer, Secretary, Treasurer

The directors will serve as directors until our next shareholder meeting or until a successor is elected who accepts the position. Officers hold their positions at the
will of the Board of Directors. There are no arrangements, agreements or understandings between non-management shareholders and management under which
non-management shareholders may directly or indirectly participate in or influence the management of our affairs.
Tobi Mac Aro, President, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Secretary, Treasurer and Director
Mr. Aro earned his MBA in Technology Management in 2010 through the California State University MBA Program. Over the last 12 years, he has worked in a
wide variety of professional capacities in both private and public sectors, different business industries as a Business Technologist that includes bringing technology
product to life and enhance products to increase sales performance and growth. Mr. Aro has served as a consultant for various corporations, including a stint as a
Business Product Growth Consultant for Chevron Inc. from July 2014 – December 2014, where he was served as a liaison between the functional and technical
requirements as well as the execution of those requirements in the deliverables, including working with the technical and business teams to prepare the quality
assurance testing plans and validation of the sprint goals. Also, Mr. Aro served as a Business Analyst Consultant for Northrop Grumman & Boeing from April
2013 – September 2014, where he coordinated with senior customer management regarding board reviews and team compliance with policy. Mr. Aro was a
Business Systems Analyst for Timac Solutions from February 2011 – 2013, where his responsibilities included determining the operational objectives by studying
business functions; gathering information; evaluating output requirements and formats. Designing new system applications by analyzing requirements;
constructing workflow charts and diagrams; studying system capabilities; writing specifications. Mr. Aro, founded Flitways Technology Inc. in January 2013 and
has been the company’s CEO and Director since that time.
Mr. Aro does not currently serve on the boards of other public companies.
Significant Employees
There are no individuals other than our executive officer who make a significant contribution to our business.
Family Relationships
There are no family relationships among our officers or directors.
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Legal Proceedings
None of our directors, executive officers, promoters or control persons has been involved in any of the following events during the past five years:
·
·
·
·

any bankruptcy petition filed by or against any business of which such person was a general partner or executive officer either at the time of the
bankruptcy or within two years prior to that time;
any conviction in a criminal proceeding or being subject to a pending criminal proceeding (excluding traffic violations and other minor offenses);
being subject to any order, judgment, or decree, not subsequently reversed, suspended or vacated, of any court of competent jurisdiction, permanently or
temporarily enjoining, barring, suspending or otherwise limiting his involvement in any type of business, securities or banking activities; or
being found by a court of competent jurisdiction (in a civil action), the SEC or the Commodity Futures Trading Commission to have violated a federal or
state securities or commodities law, and the judgment has not been reversed, suspended, or vacated.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Compliance Reporting
Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires a company’s directors and officers, and persons who own more than ten-percent (10%) of the
company’s common stock, to file with the Securities and Exchange Commission reports of ownership on Form 3 and reports of change in ownership on Forms 4
and 5. Such officers, directors and ten-percent stockholders are also required to furnish the company with copies of all Section 16(a) reports they file. Based solely
on our review of the copies of such forms received by us and on written representations from certain reporting persons, we believe that non Section 16(a) reports
applicable to our officers, directors and ten-percent stockholders with respect to the fiscal year ended December 31, 2017 were filed.
Code of Ethics
We have not yet adopted a code of ethics that applies to our principal executive officer, principal financial officer, principal accounting officer or controller, or
persons performing similar functions because we have not yet finalized the content of such a code. Companies whose equity securities are listed for trading on the
OTC Pink Sheets are not currently required to implement a code of ethics.
Director Nominees
As of December 31, 2017 there have been no material changes to the procedures by which security holders may recommend nominees to our Board of Directors.
Audit Committee
The functions of the Audit Committee are currently carried out by our Board of Directors. Our Board of Directors has determined that we do not presently need an
audit committee financial expert on our Board of Directors carrying out the duties of the Audit Committee. Our Board of Directors has determined that the cost of
hiring a financial expert to act as one of our directors and to be a member of the Audit Committee or otherwise perform Audit Committee functions outweighs the
benefits of having a financial expert on the Audit Committee.
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Item 11. Executive Compensation.
The following Summary Compensation Table sets forth the total annual compensation paid or accrued by us to or for the account of the Principal Executive Officer
(“PEO”) and our Principal Financial Officer (“PFO”). None of our other executive officers received compensation in excess of $100,000 during the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2017 and 2016.
Summary Compensation

Name and Principal
Position
Tobi Mac Aro,
President, CEO,
CFO, Secretary,
Treasure and sole
Director

Salary

Bonus
($)

Stock
Awards
($)

Option
Awards

Non-Equity
Incentive
Plan

Non-qualified
Deferred
Compensation
Earnings

All Other
Compensation

($)

($)

Compensation
($)

($)

Total

Year

($)

($)

2017

120,000

0

0

133,000

0

0

0

253,000

2016

79,000

0

0

0

0

0

0

79,000

Mr. Aro spends approximately 100% of his time on our business.
(1) In December 2017, the Company granted the CEO options (“Options”) to purchase 31,000,000 shares of the Company’s common stock vesting 7,000,000 options on
December 31, 2017 and 8,000,000 options on each date of December 31, 2018, 2019 and 2020 with an exercise price of $0.0237. The Options had contractual live of
five years, had exercise price of $0.0237 and had vesting terms over three years.

Our executive officers and directors did not receive any other compensation as directors or officers or any benefits.
Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year End
As of December 31, 2017, our President held 31,000,000 stock options, of which 7,000,0000 vested in 2017 and exercised in January 2018. The remaining
24,000,000 stock options vest through 2020.
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters.
The following table sets forth the ownership, as of April 6, 2018, of our common stock by each of our directors, and by all executive officers and directors as a
group, and by each person known to us who is the beneficial owner of more than 5% of any class of our securities. As of April 6, 2018, there were 77,849,281
common shares issued and outstanding. All persons named have sole voting and investment power with respect to the shares, except as otherwise noted. The
number of shares described below includes shares which the beneficial owner described has the right to acquire within 60 days of the date of this Annual Report.
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Beneficial Owner (a)

Title of Class
of Stock

Tobi Mac Aro

Common
Preferred Series A

All Current Directors and Executive
Officers as a Group (1 Person)

Amount and Nature
of
Beneficial Ownership (b)
39,600,000
1,000,000*
39,600,000 common shares

Percent of Class (c)

50.9%
100%
50.9%

1,000,000 Series A Preferred
100%
(a) The address for each Beneficial Owner is c/o Flitways Technology, Inc., 600 Corporate Pointe, Suite 550, Culver City, CA 90230
(b) The person named in this table has sole voting and investment power with respect to all shares of common stock shown as beneficially owned by them, subject to applicable community
property laws.
(c) Based on 77,849,281 shares of common stock outstanding, and 1,000,000 shares of Series A Preferred Stock outstanding as of April 4, 2018.

Pension, Retirement or Similar Benefit Plans
There are no arrangements or plans in which we provide pension, retirement or similar benefits to our directors or executive officers. We have no material bonus or
profit sharing plans pursuant to which cash or non-cash compensation is or may be paid to our directors or executive officers, except that stock options may be
granted at the discretion of the Board of Directors or a committee thereof.
Compensation Committee
We currently do not have a compensation committee of the Board of Directors or a committee performing a similar function. It is the view of the Board that it is
appropriate for us not to have such a committee because of our size and because the Board as a whole determines executive compensation. Each of our directors is
also is a senior officer of the company.
Compensation Committee Report
Our Board of Directors as a whole has revised and discussed the compensation discussion and analysis disclosed in this Form 10-K and based on this review and
discussion, has determined that the disclosure be included in this annual report.
Compensation of Directors
We do not pay our directors any fees for attendance at Board meetings or similar remuneration or reimburse them for any out-of-pocket expenses incurred by them
in connection with our business.
Change of Control
As of December 31, 2017 we had no pension plans or compensatory plans or other arrangements which provide compensation in the event of a termination of
employment or a change in our control.
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Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence
Director Independence
The OTC Pink Sheets on which our common shares are listed on does not have any director independence requirements. We also do not have a definition of
independence as our directors also hold positions executive officer positions with us. Once we engage further directors and officers, we plan to develop a definition
of independence and scrutinize our Board of Directors with regards to this definition.
Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services
Audit, Audit-Related and Non-Audit Fees
The following table represents fees for the professional audit services and fees billed for other services rendered by our auditor, Rose, Snynder & Jacobs, LLP for
the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively and any other fees billed for other services rendered during that period.

Description of Service
Audit fees
Audit-related fees
Tax fees
All other fees
Total

Year ended December 31,
2017
($)
45,000
45,000

Year ended December 31,
2016
($)
15,000
15,000

Audit Committee Approval
Since our inception, our Board of Directors, performing the duties of the audit committee, has reviewed all audit and non-audit related fees at least annually. The
Board, acting as the audit committee, pre-approved all audit related services for the year ended December 31, 2017
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PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules
The financial statement schedules are omitted because they are inapplicable or the requested information is shown in our financial statements or related notes
thereto.
Exhibits
Exhibit
Number

Exhibit
Description

3.1

Articles of Incorporation

3.2

Bylaws

3. 3

Certificate of Designation of Series A Preferred Stock ( incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.01 to the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed November 14, 2017 )

4.1

Common Stock Purchase Warrant dated August 11, 2017, issued to L2 Capital, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1
to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed August 28, 2017 )

4.2

Convertible Promissory Note dated August 11, 2017, issued to L2 Capital, LLC ( incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to
the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed August 28, 2017 )

4.4

Convertible Promissory Note dated July 14, 2017, issued to EMA Financial, LLC ( incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to
the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed August 2, 2017 )

4.5

Common Stock Purchase Warrant dated July 14, 2017, issued to EMA Financial, LLC ( incorporated by reference to Exhibit
4.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed August 2, 2017 )

4.6

Convertible Promissory Note dated March 2, 2017, issued to EMA Financial, LLC ( incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1
to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed April 17, 2017 )

4.7

Convertible Promissory Note dated March 6, 2017, issued to Auctus Fund, LLC ( incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to
the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed April 17, 2017 )

10.1

Equity Purchase Agreement dated August 11, 2017 between FlitWays Technology Inc. and L2 Capital, LLC ( incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed August 28, 2017 )
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10.2

Registration Rights Agreement dated August 11 between FlitWays Technology Inc. and L2
Capital, LLC ( incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed August 28, 2017 )

10.3

Amendment #1 to the Equity Purchase Agreement, Note, Warrant, and Registration Rights
Agreement entered into on September 15, 2017 ( incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to
the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed September 26, 2017 )

10.4

Cancellation Agreement entered into on September 15, 2017 ( incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed September 26, 2017 )

10.5

Securities Purchase Agreement dated July 14, 2017 by and between FlitWays Technology Inc.
and EMA Financial, LLC ( incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed August 2, 2017 )

10.6

Share Exchange Agreement dated June 29, 2016 by and among FlitWays Technology Inc.,
Cataca Resources, Inc., and the shareholders of FlitWays Technology Inc. ( incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.01 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed September 7,
2016 )

10.7

Stock Purchase Agreement dated September 6, 2017 by and between Tobi Mac Aro, Edward
Barrios, and Maxwell Ramos. ( incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s
Current Report on Form 10-K filed September 6, 2016 ).

10.8

Office Lease dated September, 2017 between REEP-OFC Corporate Pointe CA, LLC and
FlitWays Technology, Inc. ( incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 24, 2017 )

10.9

Employment Agreement dated December 28, 2017 between FlitWays Technology, Inc. and
Tobi Mac Aro ( incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed December 29, 2017 )

16.1

Letter from Squar Milner LLP dated March 8, 2017 regarding change in certifying accountant (
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 16.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
March 9, 2017 )

16.2

Letter from PLS CPAs dated October 27, 2016 regarding change in certifying accountant (
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 16.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
November 2, 2016 )

31.1

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14 or
15d-14 of the Exchange Act pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1

Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section
1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

EX-101.INS
EX-101.SCH
EX-101.CAL
EX-101.LAB
EX-101.PRE
EX-101.DEF

XBRL Instance Document
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act, the Registrant has duly caused this Annual Report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.
Date: April 17, 2018
FLITWAYS TECHNOLOGY INC.
By:

/s/ Tobi Mac Aro
Tobi Mac Aro
President, Chief Executive Officer, Secretary,
Treasurer, Chief Financial Officer and Director

Pursuant to the requirements of the Exchange Act this Report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and
on the dates indicated.
Signature
/s/ Tobi Mac Aro
Tobi Mac Aro

Title

Date

President, Chief Executive Officer,
Secretary, Treasurer, Chief Financial
Officer and Director

April 17, 2018
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EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. ss 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, Tobi Mac Aro, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of FlitWays Technology Inc.;

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.

I am responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a- 15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and
internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

5.

a.

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b.

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c.

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d.

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

I have disclosed, based on my most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of
the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
a.

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b.

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: April 17, 2018

/s/ Tobi Mac Aro
Tobi Mac Aro
President, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer,
Treasurer and Director
(Principal Executive Officer, Principal Financial Officer
and Principal Accounting Officer)

EXHIBIT 32.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, Tobi Mac Aro, hereby certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
(1)

the Annual Report on Form 10-K of FlitWays Technology Inc. for the year ended December 31, 2017 (the "Report") fully complies with the
requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2)

the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of Xalles Holdings
Inc.

Dated: April 17, 2018
/s/ Tobi Mac Aro
Tobi Mac Aro
President, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial
Officer, Treasurer and Director
(Principal Executive Officer, Principal Financial
Officer and Principal Accounting Officer)

